ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 29, 2015
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW MARI JUANA BALLOT MEASURE - DI SCUSSI ON
| MPLEMENTATI ON / ADM NI STRATI ON

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
See Senate State Affairs mnutes from 1/22/15 and 1/ 27/ 15.
W TNESS REQ STER
JAY BUTLER, Chief Medical O ficer/Drector
Di vi sion of Public Health
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information related to
Marijuana Bal |l ot Measure.

JEFF ROGERS, Operations Manager
D vision of Adm nistrative Services

OF

t he

Departnment of Conmerce, Conmunity and Economc Devel opnent

( DCCED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information related to
Marijuana Ballot Initiative.

ELAI NE BUSSE FLOYD, Director
Di vi sion of Environnental Health

t he

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- January 29, 2015



Departnment of Conmerce, Conmunity and Economc Devel opnent
( DCCED)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information related to the
Marijuana Ballot Initiative.

RACHAEL PETRO, President/ CEO

Al aska St ate Chanber of Comrerce

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information related to the
Marijuana Ballot Initiative.

JOEY CRUM President/CEO

Nort hern Industrial Training and

Executive Board Menber

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information related to the
Marijuana Ballot Initiative.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01:49 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators McGQuire, Welechowski, Huggins, Coghill, and
Chair Stoltze.

Overview. Marijuana Ball ot Measure - Discussion of
| npl enentation / Adm nistration

9:02: 12 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE announced that the commttee wuld hear a
presentation on the Marijuana Ballot Measure. He said today's
presenters are fromthe Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) and the Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity and Econom c
Devel opnent (DCCED), as well as from the business community
regarding their drug testing nmandates. He noted letters in
menbers' packets. He stated the purpose of the neeting is to
further public awareness of the issue.

9: 04: 03 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE referenced an email from M. Schulte that
referenced the word "salt" found in the initiative.

CHAI R STOLTZE i ntroduced Dr. Butler.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 29, 2015



9: 05: 31 AM

JAY BUTLER, MD, Chief Medical Oficer, Drector, Division of
Public Health, Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

presented information related to the Marijuana Ballot Measure

He said he would provide an overview of the short-term and | ong-
term effects of recreational marijuana, what has been | earned
from Colorado, the effects on health of Iegalizing marijuana,
and the devel opi ng of policy and regul ation.

Dr. Butler began with the short-termeffects of nmarijuana use on
heal th: inpaired short-termnenory, tenporary |oss of

coordi nation, an increase in notor vehicle accident risk when
driving soon after using, Tetrahydrocannabi nol (THC) bl ood
levels of 2 to 5 nanograns per milliliter (ng/m) associated
with inpaired driving skills, and altered judgnent. At high
doses, stinulation can consist of agitation, paranoia, and
psychosi s and can be foll owed by sedation, which can lead to
respiratory insufficiency in children. There is no specific
antidote for marijuana toxicity.

9:08:31 AM

DR. BUTLER addressed | ong-termeffects of Marijuana use on
health: risk of addiction - one in ten who use marijuana wll
becone addicted, and the risk increases with earlier age of
initiation and daily use (25 percent to 50 percent). Cannabis

wi t hdrawal syndrone includes craving, irritability, sleep
difficulties, anxiety, and depression. Regular use during

adol escence is associated with altered brain devel opnent, poorer
educati onal outcone, cognitive inpairnment, lower |1Q score, and
dimnished |ife satisfaction. He noted that association does not
prove causation of dissatisfaction.

DR. BUTLER continued with additional |ong-termeffects of
Mari j uana use on health: association with use of other

subst ances, psychiatric synptons associated with anxiety and
depression, and unnmaski ng of schi zophrenia (genetic

predi sposition), as well as increased synptons of chronic
bronchitis in persons who regularly snoke nmarijuana.

9:11: 24 AM

DR. BUTLER addressed the effects on the health system | earned
fromhis experience in Col orado: increased adm ssions to burn
centers because of butane use as a solvent to extract THC,
cyclic vomting syndrome/ marijuana hyperenmesi s syndrone
associated with frequent use of high THC products and abdom nal
pai n, sweating, severe vomting. There was al so THC i nt oxi cati on
from edi ble products —10 ng to 30 ng THC for intoxication - and

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 29, 2015



THC bl ood | evels begin to rise about 30 mnutes after
consunption, peak at about 3 hours, and are clear about 12 hours
after ingestion.

9:14: 29 AM

DR. BUTLER showed a table that depicts the effect on the health
care system for children under 12 years old in Denver from 2005
to 2011. It listed the nunber of energency departnment visits for
i ngestions of marijuana before and after the liberalization of
nmedi cal marijuana in 2009 and recreational use legalization in
2012.

DR. BUTLER addressed many caveats and poorly understood issues
related to marijuana: association does not prove causati on,
health effects may take years to manifest, effects of prenatal
exposure on brain devel opnent, cancer risk - confounded by high
rates of concurrent tobacco use, risk of heart attack and
stroke, opportunities for effective public health education to
reduce the health risks, second hand marijuana snoke exposure,
e-cigarettes (vaping), and the "re-normalization" of snoking.

9:18:35 AM

DR. BUTLER comrented on the health effects of legalization. He
said very little is known, and the health effects depend on the
preval ence of use and age-specific preval ence of use, the
frequency and duration of use, the nodalities of use, and the
regul ation, taxation, and market forces.

9:21:13 AM

DR. BUTLER discussed what the legalization of marijuana neans
for witing policy. There is a need for clearly defined
term nol ogy and a discussion about the packaging of edibles in
order to prevent children from considering them as treats.
Labeling of products wll be inportant, too.

He said the regulation of marketing and advertising will have a
direct inpact on use. The types of sales venues, such as |iquor
stores and state fairs, wll have to be defined under the

definition of a public place. There should be an attenpt to
harnoni ze marijuana regulations wth those of tobacco use.
Concentrates for vaping need to be consi dered.

9:24: 09 AM

DR. BUTLER summari zed that it is a conplex topic and enphasized
that there is nmuch that remains unknown about marijuana
| egalization. He offered to answer questions.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- January 29, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE voiced appreciation for Dr. Butler's coments. He
noted this is not a debate about |egalization of marijuana, but
the adm ni stration's concerns for public health.

DR. BUTLER agreed. The issue is how to have | egal marijuana used
in a way that has the | east anobunt of negative effect on health.

CHAIR STOLTZE said he appreciates the information within the
scope of the departnent's constitutional nandate.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted parallels with tobacco use and asked if
marijuana use could be considered a health risk simlar to
cigarettes for the purpose of health insurance coverage.

9:26:18 AM

DR. BUTLER answered that tobacco and alcohol use have been
included by the insurance industry and enployers in surveys of
personal habits. He said he has seen surveys that have asked
about marijuana and other drug use, but whether or not marijuana
could be added to an insurance rate survey, he could not say.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked for the nunber of the high THC content in
marijuana in Al aska.

DR. BUTLER asked if Senator Huggins was referring to the
specific concentration in the marijuana.

SENATOR HUGGE NS replied yes.

DR. BUTLER deferred to the producers in Colorado to answer
because there the THC content is increased to 12 percent from a
much | ower percentage. He assunmed it would be the sanme in
Al aska.

9:28:45 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked if there have been peer reviews on snoke
t oxi ns.

DR. BUTLER replied that there has been sone analysis about
residual THC content in exhaled marijuana snoke. It is an area
of great interest.

SENATOR COGHILL noted an article regarding THC versus CBD
[ cannabidiol], the first being the psycho-active elenent and the
|atter the pain managenent elenent. He inquired if the health
benefits of CBD have been val uabl e.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 29, 2015



9:31: 06 AM

DR. BUTLER shared his experience regarding mnmedical marijuana in
caring for HV patients in the early 90's, and wth a patient
who had |iver disease.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked Dr. Butler to formalize his professiona
findings into recomendations for this conmttee and others, as
well as for the executive branch. He terned it a "team effort”
to put the people's law into effect.

9:34: 28 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if DHSS anticipates having a public
awar eness canmpaign to educate Al askans on the effects of
marij uana use.

DR. BUTLER answered yes. The departnment is developing a website
for the public and for providers. He said there is currently not
much avail abl e to Al askans.

9:36:49 AM

JEFF ROGERS, Operations Manager, Division of Admnistrative
Ser vi ces, Departnent of  Conmerce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent (DCCED), presented information related to the
Marijuana Ballot Initiative.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if DCCED would discuss its role in public
health and safety. He asked for information about the Crine Lab
as testing facility.

9: 38: 04 AM

ELAI NE BUSSE FLOYD, Director, Division of Environnental Health,
Department of Conmerce, Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent
(DCCED), answered questions related to the Marijuana Ball ot
Initiative. She said if a marijuana product is considered to be
a food, DCCED s expertise is in regulating the production,
handling, and sale of it. The Food Safety and Sanitation Program
could regulate nost aspects of the processing and handling of
edi bl e marijuana products under the Al aska Food Code.

She pointed out that marijuana and cannabis are now consi dered
drugs. Inplenentation of the initiative depends on how narijuana
products are viewed legally. The Al aska Food, Drug, and Cosnetic
Act contains |anguage very simlar to the Federal Food, Drug

and Cosnetic Act and outlines DCCED s authority relative to food
and cosnetics and DHSS s authority relative to the oversight of
drugs and devi ces.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 29, 2015



CHAIR STOLTZE requested a conparison of the Food and Drug
Adm nistration's (FDA) role versus the state's role in this
i ssue.

M5. BUSSE FLOYD asked for clarification of the question.
CHAIR STOLTZE inquired if the federal gover nnment has

capabilities the state does not have and if the state's m ssion
shoul d be expanded as it relates to marijuana.

9:40: 43 AM
M5. BUSSE FLOYD explained that part of the confusion, and what
still has to be determned, are the standards of identity and

conposition relative to safe THC consunption levels, and
di sclosure of additives that can cause the product to be nore
potent. The departnent receives guidance from the FDA, which
cannot provide the departnent with any technical expertise or
scientific guidance, or regulatory standards because narijuana
has not been approved as a safe, effective drug.

CHAI R STOLTZE summarized that the department can determ ne how
the product is processed, but not the consequences of possessing
it.

M5. BUSSE FLOYD agr eed.

SENATOR COGHILL asked about the departnent's capability in
determ ning THC and CBD | evel s.

9:42:16 AM

M5. BUSSE FLOYD replied that DCCED has not done any research
into that process because it is uncertain if it has a role at
all, depending on the legislative outcone. She concluded that
the Food Safety and Sanitation Program would probably oversee
basic sanitation and food safety hazards and defer to Commerce
to deal with potency, serving size, and other marijuana-specific
issues. This is simlar to how al cohol-related issues are dealt
wit h.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked Ms. Busse Floyd for the distinction.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the departnent anticipates assistance
fromthe FDA in the future or if federal |aw prevents that.

M5. BUSSE FLOYD said assistance fromthe FDA is not avail abl e.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- January 29, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE asked if it was because of conflicting laws or if
t hey do not provi de assi stance.

MS. BUSSE FLOYD said it was both

SENATOR COGHI LL comrented that the new U S. Attorney Ceneral-
desi gnee does not support rmarijuana | egalization.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSEKI asked if MVs. Busse Floyd has any
| egi sl ative changes to recommend at this tine.

MS. BUSSE FLOYD answered no

9:44: 32 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the state should be concerned about
genetically nodified marijuana (GVO).

M5. BUSSE FLOYD replied that she has no expertise in the subject
of GMO s.

SENATOR HUGGE NS encouraged her to research that subject.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that the testifiers are constrained in their
answers because they, like others, lack information to about how
to regulate marijuana. There are challenges and uncertainties
related to the initiative.

9:47. 00 AM
SENATOR COGHILL agreed. He said they are waiting for the
regul ations to be witten.

CHAI R STOLTZE called for the Executive Branch to be a forceful
partner in devel oping regul ations.

SENATOR MCGUI RE agr eed.

M5. BUSSE FLOYD enphasized that the Food Safety and Sanitation
Programis well-prepared to handl e the sanitation aspects of the
potential food product.

CHAI R STOLTZE agreed that they do that job well.

9:50: 16 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE addressed the subject of drug testing, including
current | aw and expectations of enployers.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 29, 2015



RACHAEL PETRO, President/CEO Al aska State Chanber of Comrerce,
Anchorage, Al aska, presented information on the Marijuana Ball ot
Initiative. She pointed out that the Al aska State Chanber of
Commerce opposed Ballot Measure 2 due to the uncertainty and
lack of clarity. She said it conmes down to workforce safety,
readi ness, productivity, and the risks to workers and enpl oyers.
She stated that the business community needs certainty as this
| egi sl ati on proceeds. She suggested looking to other states for
gui dance and have good practices in place initially, rather than
rushing into conpliance.

SENATOR MCGUI RE thanked M. Petro. She noted supporters'
statenents that |egalization does not interfere with business's
right to retain a zero tolerance policy for drugs in the
wor kpl ace. She said both the Judiciary Committee and this
commttee are trying to determne the legislature's role. She
inquired where M. Petro would like to see the legislature
clarify workplace zero tol erance use of narijuana. She requested
exanpl es of how Washington and Colorado have dealt with this
i ssue.

9:55: 54 AM

M5. PETRO said she is not an expert and supports the
| egislature's due diligence. She said she would be happy to
contact counterparts in those states to seek nore information.
She added that she is encouraging the business community to
become famliar with enforcing a zero tolerance policy. She
reiterated the inportance of getting regulations right the first
time.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted the legislature's intention to not interfere
with the rights of public safety. He thought that workplace
requirenments would remain in place.

9:57:57 AM
M5. PETRO specified testing concerns.

SENATOR MCGUI RE agreed that testing technology is not up to
date. The Departnent of Public Safety has said that currently
there is no road-side test for marijuana inpairnment. She
requested Ms. Petro forward to the conmttees any information
she conmes across related to testing and workpl ace rights.

M5. PETRO noted that many enployers already have a zero-
tol erance policy in place due to federal nandates.

10: 01: 55 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- January 29, 2015



JOEY CRUM President/CEOQ  Northern Industrial Training, and
Executive Board Menber, Alaska Trucking Association, presented
information related to the Mirijuana Ballot Initiative. He
echoed Ms. Petro's coments about federal mandates. Al
enpl oyees under the federal Mdtor Safety Carrier Act are under
federal mandates that, regardless of state initiatives, the U S
Department of Transportation's (USDOT) Drug and Al cohol Testing
does not authorize the wuse of Schedule 1 drugs, including
marijuana, for any reason. He said the trucking industry is
already a zero tolerance industry. He said concerns that in an
industry with a growing shortage of skilled workers, |abeling
and accidental consunption are very detrinental to the industry.
He gave an exanple of random drug testing requirenents and costs
to the industry as a result of accidental consunption.

10: 05: 38 AM

MR. CRUM expl ained that Northern Industrial Training is part of
a data network required by oil producers that includes a zero
tolerance drug testing program He voiced concern about Ball ot
Measure 2 resulting in a shrinking enployee pool. He hoped there
woul d be a public education canpai gn and predictable and certain
| aws regardi ng advertising, packaging, and sales.

10: 07: 11 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL questioned the levels of THC and CBD in the zero
t ol erance drug policy.

MR. CRUM explained that the test is a USDOT-sanctioned panel
test that includes specific drug |evels.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if it is a federal or state requirenent.
MR CRUMsaid it is a federal requirenent.
SENATOR COCHI LL said the state should be aware of it.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what type of test is used and the
| evel s of THC and CBD al | owed.

MR. CRUM answered that the test is a urine test and he offered
to find out the | evels all owed.

SENATOR COGHI LL added the he would like that information as
wel | .

10: 09: 30 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- January 29, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE remarked about simlar standards of the AFL-ClI O
He pointed out that it is not the Legislature's job to nake
statutory changes, but to educate the public.

10: 11: 20 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOASKI noted previous testinmony about marijuana
staying in a person's system for nonths. He said it wll be

inmportant for people to understand the federal mandat es
surrounding drug testing. He agreed that educating Alaskans is
very inportant.

SENATOR COGHI LL pointed out that there will be a state/federal
conflict in the laws regarding the use of marijuana.

10: 13: 01 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that public testinmony will be held and
is a critical part of the process. The conmttee is tending to
the deliberate process of invited testinmony now. He welconed
testinony of experts.

10: 15: 15 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL comented that the Coalition for Responsible
Cannabis Legislation provided a white paper that answers
guestions. He voiced appreciation for the information.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted the conmittee's intent regarding a proposed
bill.

10: 16: 28 AM

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 10:16 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- January 29, 2015



